
 

 

 

This meeting will be by teleconference pursuant to Executive Orders N-25-

20 and N-29-20.  

The Board of Directors (“Board”) and employees of the Pacific View 

Charter School shall meet via the Zoom meeting platform. Members of the 

public who wish to access this Board meeting may do so at 
https://us04web.zoom.us/j/78055998359?pwd=cVV5eUxLa1F2Z1NoTnpZemkwQkxkQT09 

 

 

 

Members of the public who wish to comment during the Board meeting 

may use the “raise hand” tool on the Zoom platform. Members of the public 

calling in will be given the opportunity to address the Board during the 

meeting. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. If an 

interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated to English and 

the time limit shall be six (6) minutes. The Board may limit the total time 

for public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves the right to 

mute or remove a participant from the meeting if the participant 

unreasonably disrupts the Board meeting.  

 

Access to Board Materials: A copy of the written materials which will be 

submitted to the Board may be reviewed by any interested persons on The 

Pacific View Charter School’s website along with this agenda following the 

posting of the agenda at least 72 hours in advance of this meeting.  

 

Disability Access: Requests for disability-related modifications or 

accommodations to participate in this public meeting should be made 24 

hours prior to the meeting by calling (760) 757-0161x105. All efforts will be 

made for reasonable accommodations. The agenda and public documents 

can be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of the Americans 

with Disabilities Act.  

 

Pacific View Charter School 
A California Public School and Nonprofit 501 (c) (3) Corporation 

3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, California 92056 

Phone # (760) 757-0161 

AGENDA 

Board of Trustees’ Meeting – Tuesday, August 18, 2020 

 3:30pm 

 

1.0           Call to Order/Roll Call  

 

2.0           Approval of Agenda        Action 

 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us04web.zoom.us/j/78055998359?pwd%3DcVV5eUxLa1F2Z1NoTnpZemkwQkxkQT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1597869612021000&usg=AOvVaw3vquASnzO22UTEVMHIQmWP


 

 

3.0           Pledge of Alligence                     

 

4.0           Public Comment 

 

5.0           Introductions 

                  

6.0           Executive Director’s Report               Information 

 

7.0           Financial Update      Information 

 

8.0           Consent Calendar 

These agenda items are considered routine and will be approved in one action without 

discussion. If a Board Trustee requests that an item be removed from the consent calendar 

or a citizen wishes to speak to an item, the item will be considered under Action Items. 

  

       8.1    Minutes from Board Meeting of July 21, 2020              Action 

 

          9.0 Action/Discussion Items 

 9.1   Consolidated Application and Reporting System   Action 

 9.2   Board Warrant Listing July 1 through July 31, 2020  Action 

 9.3   Learning Continuity Plan      Information 

   9.4   Telework Policy Graduation Policy     Action 

   

 

 10.0  Curriculum 

  10.1  Graduation Policy       Action 

 

 11.0  Board Staff Discussion  

 

 12.0  Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     7.0 



Revenues 2020/21 2020/21 # Year-to-Date %

Adopted Revised 7/1/20-7/31/2020 Remaining Budget 

Object Resource Description Budget Budget Transactions Budget Remaining

8011 0000 Local Control Funding Formula 2,920,281 4,296,355 174,308 4,122,047 96%

8012 1400 Education Protection Act 898,585 898,585 0 898,585 100%

8096 0000 Transfer to Charter School Revenue In-Lieu Prop Tax 2,491,998 2,434,595 0 2,434,595 100%

8550 0000 Mandated Cost Reimbursement

8560 1100 Lottery 109,331 108,312 0 108,312 100%

8560 6300 Restricted Lottery 36,140 35,382 0 35,382 100%

8590 0000 All Other State Revenue 2,000 118,035 0 118,035 100%

8660 0000 Interest 8,000 8,000 0 8,000 100%

8792 6500 Special Education 531,559 531,559 25,328 506,231 95%

8699 0000 All Other Local Revenue 2,000 2,000 285 1,715 86%

8919 0000 Authorized Interfund Transfer 0 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total All Revenues: 6,999,894 8,432,823 199,921 8,232,902 98%

Expenditures 

Object Certificated Personnel Salaries

1100    Teacher 3,139,780 3,169,350 284,139 2,885,211 91%

1300    Supervisors and Administrators 617,890 627,278 51,379 575,899 92%

1900    Other Certificated 0 0 0 0 0%

Total Certificated Personnel Salaries: 3,757,670 3,796,628 335,518 3,461,110 91%

PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL

Page 1 of 3

August 18, 2020 Board Meeting

Treasurer's Report 

2020/21 - Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 62-00 & Capital Outlay Fund  62-01

Statement of Activities for the Period Ending July 31, 2020



2020/21 2020/21 Year-to-Date %

Description Adopted Revised 7/1/20-7/31/2020 Remaining Budget 

Budget Budget Transactions Budget Remaining

Object Classified Personnel Salaries

2100     Instructional Aides 521,124 521,124 23,643 497,481 95%

2300    Supervisors and Administrators 155,033 155,033 12,919 142,114 92%

2400    Clerical, Technical and Office 474,422 474,422 37,148 437,274 92%

2900    Other Classified Salaries 0 0 0 0 0%

Total Classified Personnel Salaries: 1,150,579 1,150,579 73,710 1,076,869 94%

   Total Employee Benefits: 1,716,560 1,716,560 124,165 1,592,395 93%

Books and Supplies

4100   Textbooks 26,440 26,440 0 26,440 100%

4200   Books and Other Reference Materials 0 0 0 0 0%

4300   Materials and Supplies 339,121 339,121 6,874 332,247 98%

4400   Non Capitalized Equipment 0 0 0 0 0%

Total Books and Supplies: 365,561 365,561 6,874 358,687 98%

Services and Other Operating Expenditures

5200   Travel and Conferences 14,947 14,947 102 14,845 99%

5300   Dues and Memberships 19,086 19,086 3,710 15,376 81%

5500   Operations and Housekeeping Services 75,872 75,872 8,167 67,705 89%

5600   Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Non capitalized 0 0 0 0 0%

      Improvements

5800   Professional Consulting Services & Operating 1,172,272 1,172,272 195,759 976,513 83%

                  Expenses

August 18, 2020 Board Meeting

Page 2 of 3

2020/21 - Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 62-00 & Capital Outlay Fund  62-01

Statement of Activities for the Period Ending July 31, 2020

Treasurer's Report 

PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL



2020/21 2020/21 Year-to-Date %

Description Adopted Revised 7/1/20-7/31/2020 Remaining Budget 

Budget Budget Transactions Budget Remaining

Object Services & Other Operating Expenses (con't) 

5900   Communications 23,947 23,947 1,810 22,137 92%

Total Services & Other Operating Expenses: 1,306,124 1,306,124 209,548 1,096,576 84%

6XXX Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0%

7619 Other Outgo and Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total All Expenditures: 8,296,494 8,335,452 749,816 7,585,636 91%

Beginning Fund Balance 6,560,279 6,560,279

Increase/Decrease -1,296,600 97,371

Ending Fund Balance 5,263,679 6,657,650

Reserve for Revolving Cash 500 500

Designated for Economic Uncertainties 248,895 274,425

Deferred Maintenance Reserve 50,000 50,000

Facilities/Architect 50,000 50,000

Facilities Reserve 217,000 217,000

Land/Bldg/Deprec/Comp Absence/Growth 4,271,251 5,639,692

Long Term Debt Reserve (Building) 217,571 217,571

Long Term Debt Reserve (Automobile) 8,462 8,462

STRS/PERS Unfunded Liability 200,000 200,000

 

PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL

Treasurer's Report 

August 18, 2020 Board Meeting

2020/21 - Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 62-00 & Capital Outlay Fund  62-01

Statement of Activities for the Period Ending July 31, 2020



 

 

 
     8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Pacific View Charter School 
A California Public School and Nonprofit 501 (c) (3) Corporation 

3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, California 92056 
Phone # (760) 757-0161 

Board of Trustees’ Meeting –Tuesday, July 21, 2020 3:30 p.m. 
Board Minutes 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
ChairpersonTaylor called the meeting to order at 3:41pm. Present, Vice Chairperson 
Jon Walters. Trustee Eve Meyer absent. 
 
2.  Approval of Agenda 

Moved by Chair Taylor and seconded by Vice Chair Walters to approve the 
agenda as presented. 
 

AYES: Taylor, Walters  
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Meyer 
 
3.  Pledge of Allegiance  
    The Pledge of Allegiance was let by Chair Taylor 
 
4.  Public Comment – Nonre 
 
5.  Introductions 
Erin Gorence, Director of Curriculum; Lori Bentley, Human Resources & Business 
Services; Gayl Johnson, Director of Student Services;Diane Gibson, Interim Lead 
Teacher High School; Geoff Weeks, Interim Lead Teacher K8; Kathy Meck, Interim Site 
Supervisory Moreno Valley. 
 
 6. Executive Director Report 

• Enrollment: Total 979- Oceanside 785, Moreno Valley 194 

• In the beginning we had a little over 1000 students that showed interest in 
attending 

• The numbers have begun to decrease due to “No Show” and students who only 
came for one class of 3 weeks 

• We have continued to offer students the opportunity to attend tutoring and 
support through Distance Learning.   

• Instructional Aides each have their own area to meet with students virtually 

• Governor Newsom working with the Legislature to come up with some ideas of 
how to support all the students that are not able to enroll due to the cap on 
growth that was signed into law 



 

 

• Schools are only going to be funded on their certified P2 ADA for the 19/20 
school year 

• We will be watching closely our enrollment when Track 2 starts as we may need 
to start a waitlist 

• Some students were coming to campus until last week when the Governor’s 
directive of no students on campuses was revealed 

• Instructional Aides have been reaching out to students to schedule times to meet 
with them for support 

• San Diego County is on the watchlist for the state and the county will need to be 
off that watchlist for 14 days before students will be allowed to return to campus 

• We have different options for re-opening depending on the guidelines from 
County Health Dept and the State 

• We are thinking the hybrid program that was built is what we will use for when 
students come back 
 

  
 7. Financial Update 

• Update addressed later in meeting 
 
 
 8. Consent Calendar 
Moved by Chair Taylor & seconded by Vice Chair Walters to approve the Consent  
Calendar as presented. 
 
AYES: Taylor, Walters 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Meyer 
 
 9. Action/Discussion Items 

9.1 Additional information about Track 2 – PLC’s are meeting this week to 
discuss what classes will look like when students return. 
 

9.2  Moved by Vice Chair Walters and seconded by Chair Taylor to approve the 
updated Student policies as presented. 
 
AYES: Taylor, Walters 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Meyer 
 

9.3  Moved by Chair Taylor and seconded by Vice Chair Walters to approve the 
June 2020 Board Warrant Listing as presented. 
 
AYES: Taylor, Walters 
NOES: None 



 

 

ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Meyer 
 

9.4  Moved by Chair Taylor and seconded by Vice Chair Walters to approve the 
Annual Organizational Meeting as: 

Chair: Jon Walters 
Vice Chair: Nichole Taylor 
Day: Third Tuesday of every month 
Time: 3:30pm 
Location: 3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd. Oceanside, CA 92056-2669 
 

 
AYES: Taylor, Walters 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Meyer 
 

9.5  Moved by Vice Chair Walters and seconded by Chair Taylor to approve the 
2020-2021 Proposed Revised Budget as presented. 
 
AYES: Taylor, Walters 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Meyer 
 
 10.0 Board Staff Discusstion - None 

 
 11.0  Adjournment   
 Chairperson Taylor adjourned the meeting at 4:09pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
     9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 

 

 
     9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Pacific View Charter School Board Warrants - July 2020

Warrant ID Name Payment Date Total Warrant Amount Descr Fund

Invoice Fund 

Amount PO No. PO Ref

14691476 American Eagle Interiors, Inc 7/9/2020 3300.00 Drywall & Electrical Work 6200 3300.00 9510 Drywall & Electrical Work

14691477 Kajeet, Inc 7/9/2020 1185.42 Distance Learning Bundle 6200 1185.42 9510 Distance Learning Bundle

14691478 AIR CRAFTS HEATING & AC INC. 7/9/2020 11239.00 Trane System - 3682 6200 11239.00 9510 Trane System - 3682

14691479 Bray Outdoor Ads 7/9/2020 1400.00 Final Push Campaign - Google 6200 400.00 9510 Final Push Campaign - Google

14691479 Bray Outdoor Ads 7/9/2020 1400.00 Final Push Campaign - FB Ads 6200 1000.00 9510 Final Push Campaign - FB Ads

14691480 SOUTH COUNTY PEST CONTROL, INC 7/9/2020 90.00 Pest Control - MV 6200 90.00 9510 Pest Control - MV

14691481 JAN-PRO OF SAN DIEGO 7/9/2020 950.36 Hand Sanitizers 6200 950.36 9510 Hand Sanitizers

14691482 NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVICES, LLC 7/9/2020 79.00 Admin Fee 6200 79.00 9510 Admin Fee

14691483 OFFICE DEPOT 7/9/2020 411.28 Desk Calendars 6200 204.40 9510 Desk Calendars

14691483 OFFICE DEPOT 7/9/2020 411.28 Office Supplies 6200 109.47 9510 Office Supplies

14691483 OFFICE DEPOT 7/9/2020 411.28 Calculator - Admin 6200 97.41 9510 Calculator - Admin

14691484 DEBORAH L MALANA 7/9/2020 25.00 PPD SkinTest 6200 25.00 9510 PPD SkinTest

14691485 LISA DETAVERNIER 7/9/2020 28.46 Travel Expenses 6200 28.46 9510 Travel Expenses

14691486 V TECHNOLOGY SOLUTION 7/9/2020 520.29 Tech - Hardware 6200 520.29 9510 Tech - Hardware

14692027 Kajeet, Inc 7/13/2020 8936.89 Chromebooks 6200 8936.89 9510 Chromebooks

14692028 AT&T MOBILITY 7/13/2020 416.70 Cell Phone Services 6200 416.70 9510 Cell Phone Services

14692029 GOODWILL SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 7/13/2020 75.00 Shredding MV 6200 75.00 9510 Shredding MV

14692030 JAN-PRO OF SAN DIEGO 7/13/2020 3634.00 Janitorial Services & Supplies 6200 3634.00 0000001075 Janitorial Services Oceanside

14692031 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 7/13/2020 36261.88 Mortgage Payment Oceanside 6200 15411.30 0000001062 Mortgage Payment Oceanside

14692031 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 7/13/2020 36261.88 Mortgage Payment Oceanside 6200 2719.64 0000001062 Mortgage Payment Oceanside

14692032 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 7/13/2020 12355.89 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley 6200 9884.71 0000001063 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley

14692032 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 7/13/2020 12355.89 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley 6200 2471.18 0000001063 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley

14692033 SCHOOL PATHWAYS, LLC 7/13/2020 3716.19 Annual Fee & Reg Online 6200 3716.19 9510 Annual Fee & Reg Online

14692034 V TECHNOLOGY SOLUTION 7/13/2020 52.56 Projector Installation 6200 52.56 9510 Projector Installation

14693312 Riverside County Treasurer 7/16/2020 66.00 Fictitious Business License - 6200 66.00 0000001142 Fictitious Business license

14693313 Cordata Shredding 7/16/2020 82.74 Secure Storage - June 6200 82.74 9510 Secure Storage - June

14693314 ADT SECURITY SERVICES 7/16/2020 64.36 Security System - MoVal 6200 64.36 0000001135 Security System MoVal

14693315 CALIFORNIA COMMERCIAL SECURITY 7/16/2020 146.91 Security System - Oceanside 6200 146.91 0000001136 Security System - Oceanside

14693316 COX BUSINESS SERVICES 7/16/2020 402.47 Oceanside Phone & Internet 6200 342.10 0000001089 Oceanside Phone & Internet

14693316 COX BUSINESS SERVICES 7/16/2020 402.47 Oceanside Phone & Internet 6200 60.37 0000001089 Oceanside Phone & Internet

14693317 SOUTH COUNTY PEST CONTROL, INC 7/16/2020 59.00 Pest Control Services 6200 59.00 0000001131 Pest Control Services

14693318 KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS 7/16/2020 696.57 Moreno Valley - Copier 6200 696.57 9510 Moreno Valley - Copier

14693319 MV MEDICAL CTR MASTER ASSOC 7/16/2020 1153.00 Association Fees MV 6200 1153.00 0000001079 Association Fees MV

14693320 MORENO VALLEY UTILITY 7/16/2020 1102.13 Utilities - Electrical Moreno 6200 1102.13 0000001080 Utilities - Electrical MV

14693321 YOUNG, MINNEY & CORR, LLP 7/16/2020 7682.65 Legal Counsel 6200 7682.65 0000001117 Legal Counsel

14693322 RED TRUCK FIRE & SAFETY 7/16/2020 4004.19 Fire Safety Equipment MV 6200 3348.92 0000001084 Fire Safety Equipment  MV

14693322 RED TRUCK FIRE & SAFETY 7/16/2020 4004.19 Fire Safety Equipment MV 6200 655.27 0000001084 Fire Safety Equipment  MV

14693323 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 7/16/2020 2042.58 Utilities - Electrical 6200 2042.58 0000001130 Utilities - Electrical Oside

14693324 SCHOOLOGY, INC 7/16/2020 5512.00 Schoology 6200 5512.00 0000001144 Schoology- Subscription

14693325 VCC OCEAN RANCH CONDO.  ASSOC. 7/16/2020 5856.00 Association Fees - Oceanside 6200 5856.00 0000001133 Association Fees - Oside

14693326 WASTE MANAGEMENT 7/16/2020 132.40 Trash Services - MoVal 6200 132.40 0000001134 Trash Collection MoVal

14693953 NIssan Motor Acceptance Corporation 7/20/2020 705.19 Nissan 6200 343.20 0000001158 Rogues

14693953 NIssan Motor Acceptance Corporation 7/20/2020 705.19 Nissan 6200 361.99 0000001158 Rogues

14693954 COX BUSINESS SERVICES 7/20/2020 281.15 Video Security  - Oceanside 6200 281.15 0000001137 Video Security  - Oceanside

14693955 HAROLD D HAMERNIK 7/20/2020 8000.00 Website Management 6200 8000.00 0000001159 Website Management



Pacific View Charter School Board Warrants - July 2020

Name Payment Date Total Warrant Amount Descr Fund

Invoice Fund 

Amount PO No. PO Ref

14693956 OFFICE DEPOT 7/20/2020 133.89 Office Depot - Student Supplie 6200 23.17 0000001146 Student Supplies

14693956 OFFICE DEPOT 7/20/2020 133.89 Oceanside Admin Supplies 6200 85.31 0000001107 Oceanside Admin Supplies

14693956 OFFICE DEPOT 7/20/2020 133.89 Office Depot - Student Supplie 6200 12.97 0000001146 Student Supplies

14693956 OFFICE DEPOT 7/20/2020 133.89 Oceanside Admin Supplies 6200 12.44 0000001107 Oceanside Admin Supplies

14693957 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 7/20/2020 12355.89 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley 6200 9884.71 0000001063 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley

14693957 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 7/20/2020 12355.89 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley 6200 2471.18 0000001063 Mortgage Payment Moreno Valley

14695228 BILLY R  BENSON, 7/23/2020 735.63 Business Consultant 6200 735.63 9510 Business Consultant

14695229 SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS 7/23/2020 56.52 Oceanside Bottled Water 6200 50.58 9510 Oceanside Bottled Water

14695229 SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS 7/23/2020 56.52 Water MV-Bottled 6200 5.94 9510 Water MV-Bottled

14695230 GREATER RIVERSIDE CHAMBERS OF 7/23/2020 260.00 Chamber MV 6200 260.00 0000001168 Chamber MV - Membership

14695231 OFFICE DEPOT 7/23/2020 106.47 Office Depot - Student Supplie 6200 66.33 0000001146 Student Supplies

14695231 OFFICE DEPOT 7/23/2020 106.47 Moreno Valley Admin Supplies 6200 4.33 0000001108 Moreno Valley Admin Supplies

14695231 OFFICE DEPOT 7/23/2020 106.47 Oceanside Admin Supplies 6200 35.81 0000001107 Oceanside Admin Supplies

14695232 FRONTIER 7/23/2020 325.28 Moreno Valley Phone & Internet 6200 243.96 0000001095 Moreno Valley Phone & Internet

14695232 FRONTIER 7/23/2020 325.28 Moreno Valley Phone & Internet 6200 81.32 0000001095 Moreno Valley Phone & Internet

14696863 Mary Jane Gardner 7/30/2020 32.89 Travel Expenses 6200 10.35 9510 Travel Expenses

14696863 Mary Jane Gardner 7/30/2020 32.89 Travel Expenses 6200 22.54 Employee Travel Expenses

14696864 Citi Cards 7/30/2020 848.03 Rogue - Gas, Maintenance & Fas 6200 202.35 0000001065 Gas, Maintenance & Fast Trax

14696864 Citi Cards 7/30/2020 848.03 COSTCO - Janitorial Supplies & 6200 252.09 0000001138 Janitorial Supplies - Oside

14696864 Citi Cards 7/30/2020 848.03 Rogue Expenses 6200 130.45 9510 Rogue Expenses

14696864 Citi Cards 7/30/2020 848.03 Janitorial Supplies 6200 195.95 9510 Janitorial Supplies

14696864 Citi Cards 7/30/2020 848.03 Student Supplies 6200 34.63 9510 Student Supplies

14696864 Citi Cards 7/30/2020 848.03 Admin Supplies 6200 32.56 9510 Admin Supplies

14696865 BAY ALARM 7/30/2020 688.05 Fire Alarm Service Oside 6200 688.05 0000001068 Fire Alarm Svc Oceanside

14696866 CARL A. BAILEY II 7/30/2020 205.00 Handyman Services Oceanside 6200 205.00 0000001070 Handyman Services Oceanside

14696867 CENTURION TECHNOLOGIES 7/30/2020 66.15 SMART SHIELD 6200 66.15 0000001169 Smart Sheild

14696868 AT&T MOBILITY 7/30/2020 419.89 Cell Phone Replacements 6200 40.00 0000001064 Cell Phone Services

14696868 AT&T MOBILITY 7/30/2020 419.89 Cell Phone Service 6200 379.89 0000001064 Cell Phone Services

14696869 EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DIST 7/30/2020 243.56 Water Utilities - Moreno Valle 6200 243.56 0000001072 Utilities - Water Moreno Valle

14696870 KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS 7/30/2020 470.64 Oceanside Konica Copier Mainte 6200 0.00 0000001126 Oceanside Copier

14696870 KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS 7/30/2020 470.64 Oceanside Konica Copier Mainte 6200 0.00 0000001126 Oceanside Copier

14696870 KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS 7/30/2020 470.64 Oceanside Konica Copier Lease 6200 400.04 0000001126 Oceanside Copier

14696870 KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS 7/30/2020 470.64 Oceanside Konica Copier Lease 6200 70.60 0000001126 Oceanside Copier

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Storage Pods 6200 425.59 9510 Storage Pods

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Marketing Fee 6200 40.00 9510 Marketing Fee

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Postage Services - MV 6200 24.99 9510 Postage Services - MV

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Google Ads 6200 2000.00 9510 Google Ads

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Building Maintenance Supplies 6200 14.03 0000001078 Bldg Maintenance Supplies

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Postage Services 6200 24.99 0000001164 Oceanside Postage Expenses

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Admin Postage 25% 6200 75.00 0000001164 Oceanside Postage Expenses

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 FB - Ads 6200 2706.68 9510 FB - Ads

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Young Minney & Corr - Legal 6200 25.00 9510 Young Minney & Corr - Legal

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 MFCU Marketing Fees 6200 138.42 0000001172 Marketing Fees

14696871 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 7/30/2020 5699.70 Student Postage 75% 6200 225.00 0000001164 Oceanside Postage Expenses

14696872 MV MEDICAL CTR MASTER ASSOC 7/30/2020 1153.00 Property Master Association Fe 6200 1153.00 0000001079 Association Fees MV



Pacific View Charter School Board Warrants - July 2020

Name Payment Date Total Warrant Amount Descr Fund

Invoice Fund 

Amount PO No. PO Ref

14696873 COUNTY SCHOOLS SERVICE FUND 7/30/2020 1500.00 Ed Join - 2 Accounts 6200 1500.00 0000001088 Ed Join - 2 Accounts

14696874 SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA 7/30/2020 2640.00 Membership 6200 2640.00 0000001113 Membership

14696875 VCC OCEAN RANCH CONDO.  ASSOC. 7/30/2020 5856.00 Association Fees - Oceanside C 6200 5856.00 0000001133 Association Fees - Oside



 

 

 
     9.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 

California Department of Education, July 2020 

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21) 
The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Pacific View Charter School Erin Gorence, Director of Curriculum egorence@pacificview.org, 760-757-0161 

General Information 
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.] 

As with all schools in the nation, the Covid-19 pandemic has had significant impact on Pacific View Charter School’s (PVCS) programs, 
students and community. On March 13, 2020, in alignment with our sponsoring and other districts, Pacific View Charter School (PVCS), 
closed the school to students and staff. PVCS took one week to develop a plan to continue educating students through distance learning and 
was able to reopen for distance learning on March 23. As a blended learning program, the school quickly transitioned the high school 
program to solely independent study. Through the flexibility of PVCS’ learning model, the school was able to transfer students, who 
depended on onsite support for success in their courses, to elective and non-core courses, without jeopardizing their path to graduation. The 
middle school program, which requires students to attend onsite classes four days a week was also transitioned to independent study. 
Teachers were trained on lesson design for distance learning and were required to create lesson plans for each week in each subject and 
hold twice weekly office hours to support students through the lessons. Students in the K-5 home study program continued with their 
program unchanged, but began meeting with their teacher virtually instead of onsite.  

 

To support students through distance learning, staff developed a distance learning tutoring program in which students could access tutoring 
sessions virtually to get additional support in their course work. Special education programs continued to run through the virtual environment, 
with students receiving SAI and other services per their IEPs. Annual IEPs continued to be held on schedule, but assessments for initials and 
triennials were put on hold with agreement from all stakeholders. Most students continued to access their courses virtually, teachers reported 
that 75% of students were able to continue without struggle, while 15% needed additional supports to get through the programs. 10% of 
students faced significant difficulties with the distance learning model or were unreachable during the spring. PVCS was able to support 
graduating seniors and those who were unable to complete their required credits during the spring were given additional time through the 
summer to finish. 84 students were able to graduate by the end of the school year in May. An additional 11 students completed all graduation 
requirements by August, meeting the deadline to be considered a 2020 graduate at Pacific View.   

Stakeholder Engagement 
[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.] 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 2 

PVCS conducted two surveys in English and Spanish with families to solicit feedback on plans for reopening and the needs for students, one 
at the beginning of the summer and one at the end. Families were also informed through conversations with their supervisory teacher and 
the school’s website of the upcoming board meetings and of their right to review the Learning Continuity Plan prior to the August 18, 2020 
board meeting. Families were invited to attend the board meeting and participate in public comment if desired.  

Staff was surveyed informally through the summer through the Distance Learning Task Force, a team of teachers, administrators, classified 
and support staff, tasked with developing plans for the 20/21 school year. This team also met with PLCs each week to continue planning and 
soliciting feedback. In addition, PVCS conducted a formal survey for all staff members in July. 

Information from these surveys were considered as the school developed plans for reopening. Based on conflicting requests from families 
and staff, PVCS originally planned to open in a hybrid model of instruction, prioritizing campus access to students most in need, based on a 
tiered system. This plan was overruled by the mandate from Governor Newsom to keep schools virtual until restrictions were lifted by the 
state.   

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.] 

PVCS currently runs all board meetings through Zoom in accordance with Executive Order N-29-20. PVCS posts all board meeting dates 
and agendas at the school site and on the school’s website. Stakeholders who would like to participate remotely are provided with the 
opportunity to do so through this format. If a family would like to participate but does not have internet capabilities, they can participate on 
campus using a school provided computer and internet access. The link to the board meeting can be found in the board meeting packet that 
is posted 72 hours in advance. Directions to access are located on the school’s website: www.pacificview.org.  

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.] 

PVCS conducted a survey of high school students and families in June, and then again in mid-July to elicit feedback regarding the 2020/21 
school year. In the original survey, 55% of families with high school age children requested a hybrid model with students returning to campus 
during some days and not others, but this number decreased to 48% in July with 41% preferring virtual instruction only. 48% of families 
reported that they were comfortable sending their students to school if we opened completely for all classes and activities in both June and 
July. Families reported that their greatest concern in a return to campus was students contracting and spreading the Covid-19 virus. The 
biggest concern regarding remote learning was that students would not get the help they needed. Families requested increased 
communication as the best way to support their students this fall.  

 

K-8 families were also surveyed once in June and again in July. In June 57% of families preferred a hybrid model of instruction with some 
days onsite and some days at home, but only 50% supported this in July. By July only 44% of families supported a complete return to 
campus while 38% did not want to send students back to school at all. Families reported concerns regarding students wearing masks, lack of 
ability to socially distance and risk of infection as their greatest concern in a return to campus. Families reported concerns about students not 
staying engaged in virtual learning, lack of socialization and mental health as concerns for their students in a virtual environment.  

 

http://www.pacificview.org/


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 3 

PVCS staff was surveyed and informally during weekly meetings throughout the summer. A formal survey was conducted in July. 
Overwhelmingly, staff felt that students were well served in the virtual environment during the summer with 78% reporting that virtual classes 
and tutoring met the needs of the students. Staff reported significant concerns for both staff and student health when asked about a return to 
campus. Staff overwhelmingly supported continuing to teach in a virtual environment for the safety of students and staff. When asked about 
current sanitation and hygiene practices, staff reported that they felt comfortable with the current level of cleanliness, but was fearful of 
students returning to campus. Staff requested additional training in distance learning teaching strategies as well as training in Schoology and 
Pathways (the Learning Management and Student Information Systems). 

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.] 

-Plan for distance learning  

-Plan for hybrid model of instruction 

-Providing wifi embedded Chromebooks and hotspots 

-Professional Development for staff  

-Increase in mental health services and training for staff 

-Purchase of additional supplies to support students at home 

Continuity of Learning 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have 
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019–2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss 
due to future school closures.] 

As a Non-classroom- based school, Pacific View does not require classroom-based instruction for the school programs. However, PVCS has 
found that offering a blended learning environment where students have access to the school campus for support in their independent study 
courses, maximizes student success. For this reason, when allowed to by the state and county governments, PVCS does plan to offer the 
following supports for students at the school site.  

Students in high school will be able to access campus for scheduled weekly meetings with their teacher to review independent study work, 
take assessments and plan for the next week’s school work. Students who need extra support will be able to sign up for scheduled tutoring 
sessions with a teacher or an instructional aide. Onsite workshops for math, ELA and social studies will resume. Students with special needs 
will continue to receive services onsite as dictated by their IEP.  

 

Middle School students will return to the 4-day a week onsite school model with the following modifications:  
Students will stay in cohort groups in one classroom throughout the school day, while teachers will rotate into the classroom for instruction.  



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 4 

Students will have staggered start, end and lunch times to maximize social distancing. 
Students will follow a block schedule.  
 
All staff and students will undergo health screenings including temperature checks before entering the school each day. Anyone experiencing 
any illness or Covid-like symptoms will be sent home in accordance with the CDC guidelines and the PVCS Covid-19 Response Plan.  

The entire school site is cleaned and disinfected daily, a practice that will continue.  Staff will be required to clean desks and work area 
between student workshops and meetings. All staff, students and visitors will be required to wear masks on campus and masks will be 
provided to anyone who does not have one of their own. All staff desks are placed to ensure at least 6 feet of distance from other staff 
members, visitors and students.  

 

Pacific View is currently working to transition our intervention assessment to a distance learning assessment, to ensure that the school is 
able to assess students at the beginning of the year and provide interventions shortly after the school year begins regardless of the model of 
instruction required by the state/county officials. This includes identifying those students who have experienced and/or may be at risk for 
experiencing continued learning loss due to the effects of distance learning. Students who show a need for intervention will be placed in 
intervention courses to support their learning, provided with extra support from an instructional aide and received supportive curriculum to 
help build deficient skills. All teachers will begin the year assessing student knowledge of previous year’s content and provide remediation 
either class-wide or individually depending on the needs of the students in the courses. PVCS is currently researching additional curriculum 
options to support these efforts.  

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Train staff in health and safety practices $ 805.00 N 

Purchase Personal Protective Equipment $ 2430.69 N 

Train teachers in providing remedial instruction from last year’s content while also addressing this year’s 
standards  

$ 755.00 N 

Train teachers in identifying students who need additional support through tutoring. This action contributes to 
the increased or improved services by providing additional tutoring time for students who are most at risk for 
learning loss due to language barriers, unstable housing or home environment.  

$1610.00 Y 

Purchase Intervention Materials to support learning loss. This action contributes to the increased or improved 
services by providing additional materials to support homeless/foster youth who are most at risk for learning 
loss due to unstable distance learning environment  

 

$3500.00 Y 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1uDTHwkIuIDqlFKNNdPJbYq1RJVuaAsX3TAs9zaK-aBU/edit?usp=sharing


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 5 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Instructional Aides will provide additional tutoring to students in courses. This action contributes to the 
increased or improved services by providing additional materials to support homeless/foster youth who are 
most at risk for learning loss due to unstable distance learning environment. 

$67,571.75 Y 

Distance Learning Program 

Continuity of Instruction 

[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of 
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will 
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.] 

Pacific View is committed to providing rigorous, standards-based instruction in all learning modalities and platforms. As an independent study 
school, PVCS is well versed in the tools and resources needed to teach students both remotely and onsite. PVCS has planned for classroom 
instruction to begin the year virtually through the Schoology LMS. Each teacher has been trained in using the Schoology Conferencing 
features to provide direct instruction to students virtually.  

In high school, direct instruction courses will consist of one hour of teacher led instruction, followed by 45 minutes of practice/study lab with 
an instructional aide. When allowed to do so, this model may be replicated on campus to ensure a seamless transition in 
learning.  Independent study courses will continue to run through the Schoology LMS with no changes to program or curriculum regardless of 
distance learning requirements. Teachers have been trained to meet with students and families through Schoology Conferencing when they 
cannot meet in person onsite.  

In the middle school program, students will begin their year in the virtual Schoology environment, following a block schedule where they 
attend two -three classes per day. When allowed, students will return to campus following the same schedule with the same teachers to 
ensure a seamless transition and to mitigate learning loss. All curriculum has been adapted to work virtually with students accessing their 
curriculum digitally as well as through checked out textbooks and materials where needed. To provide additional support for students, 
tutoring and study sessions with instructional aides will continue through Schoology Conferencing, so students have the opportunity to 
access additional support for both independent study and virtual courses.  

There are no changes to the K-6 home study program as that program has always run as a distance learning program with online curriculum. 
Students and families will continue to meet with their teacher weekly through the Schoology platform.  

All students are provided with Chromebooks and all curriculum to ensure that they have the necessary materials to be successful both on 
and off campus. Students who have Wifi connectivity issues will be issued either a Wifi-enabled Chromebook or hotspot as detailed in the 
connectivity section below 

Access to Devices and Connectivity 

[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.] 



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 6 

For the past six years, PVCS has provided Chromebooks to all students in grades 6-12 and for any students in K-5 who request them. This 
program ensures that the school has the inventory necessary to supply all students with devices. PVCS was also awarded a grant from the 
Girard Foundation to purchase wifi-enabled Chromebooks to support students who did not have access to internet in the home and could not 
take advantage of free options for a variety of reasons. As the 2020-21 school year began, it became apparent that the school would need to 
allocate additional funds to purchase hotspots and headsets as more students experienced interruptions to wifi services and transitions in 
housing. The funds set aside for additional purchases of hotspots and wifi-enabled Chromebooks will ensure that all students at PVCS not 
only have access to devices but also wifi as needs of families change throughout the year. PVCS also employs a full time Technology 
Technician who can provide tech support to teachers, students and families. Teachers are trained to identify when the tech needs to be 
contacted and are able to do so as needed.  

Pupil Participation and Progress 

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how 
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.] 

As part of the Personalized Learning Model at PVCS, teachers are required to meet weekly with their students and families to ensure that 
students are progressing in their independent study courses and to address any concerns. Teachers will continue to meet this requirement 
through virtual meetings until they can meet on campus. As an independent study school, student attendance is based on work completion 
and the supervisory teacher monitors this through the weekly meetings with students. There have been no changes to this part of the 
program. All courses in grades K-12 have been evaluated by the school administration and PVCS’ school board to ensure they meet the 
instructional minutes, curricular and standards requirements for each course and grade level. Instruction minutes conducted through 
credentialed teacher-led instruction both synchronous and asynchronous in compliance with independent study law and PVCS’ Independent 
Study Policy. Please refer to the school’s handbook to review this and other school policies: Parent/Student Handbook. 

Distance Learning Professional Development 

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including 
technological support.] 

 PVCS provided/will provide the following Professional Development for staff to support the distance learning program:  

-Training on Digital Registration Meetings 

-Training on Digital Signatures and the Master Agreements 

-Training on conducting virtual meetings  

-Distance Learning and Teaching through the Lens of the PVCS Instructional Framework 

-Training in Schoology Conferencing for Instructional Aides 

-Training in Schoology Conferencing for SAI/SPED Services 

-Training in Schoology Conferencing for Teachers in Weekly Meetings 

http://pacificview.org/wpi/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Student-Handbook-2021.pdf


California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 7 

 

In addition, to the live trainings listed above, PVCS compiled a robust bank of Distance Learning PDs (or PD in Your PJs) for staff members 
to access on their own. Topics included:  

• Mental Health and Self Care for Educators 

• Pathways Trainings 

• Schoology Trainings 

• SEIS Trainings 

• Tech Tools and Gadgets 

• Teaching in the Digital Environment 

• Social/Emotional Curriculum for Students 

• ELD PD 

• Math PD 

• ELA PD  

• Science PD 

• Social Science PD 

Staff Roles and Responsibilities 

[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.] 

In addition to all staff taking on the roles of doing their job remotely/virtually, the following staff members added additional responsibilities:  

• Covid Exposure Tracking and Monitoring - HR/Business Services 

• Covid Plan Development and Implementation - Leadership 

• Telework Policies and Staff Supervision - All Supervisors 

• Health and Safety Checks for Staff and Visitors - Front Office Staff  

• Additional counseling for students beyond caseload - School Psychologist 

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs 

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English 
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing 
homelessness.] 



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 8 

English Learners will be provided with the following additional supports:  

• Tutoring assigned specifically to EL students  by a specially trained instructional aide 

• Translation services for family members to discuss student support, progress and needs 

• Language supports in the curriculum including: videos, audio support, closed captioning, embedded translations and translation 
dictionaries 

• Placement in virtual reading intervention courses 

Special Education students will receive the following additional supports:  

• Additional tutoring and specialized academic instruction through a virtual platform as required by their individualized education plans 

• Modifications and accommodations to curriculum as dictated by student IEP 

• Consultation between Education Specialist and General Education Teacher to monitor student performance  

• IEP meetings held virtually for all meeting types 

Foster students will be provided the following additional supports:  

• Priority enrollment into school, even if school is on waitlist 

• Individualized tutoring sessions 

• Access to support during the entire school day 

• A designated liaison to address academic, medical and social/emotion needs of foster students  

• Individualized college, career and financial aid counseling 

Homeless students will be provided the following additional supports:  

• Hotspots/wifi enabled Chromebooks for students who need mobile internet access 

• Ensuring all students are provided with Chromebooks and replacement materials as needed 

• Access to support during the entire school day 

• Individualized tutoring sessions 

• Staff training on trauma-informed support for students experiencing homelessness 

• A designated liaison to address academic, medical and social/emotion needs of students experiencing homelessness 

• Individualized college, career and financial aid counseling 



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 9 

Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Purchase of wifi-embedded Chromebooks and hot spots. This action is targeted at low income, foster and 
homeless families who either do not have access to wifi in the home or who experience unstable housing 
situations in which wifi is often not available 

$140,750.00 Y 

Purchase of additional Chromebooks. This action is targeted at low income, foster and homeless students who 
may not have devices in the home 

$12,000.00 Y 

Purchase of PPE $810.23 N 

Additional Janitorial contract $8,580.00 N 

Increase School Psychologist hours in summer to provide counseling for students in need. This action is 
targeted at providing support for those students most affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and economic fallout 
including families and students experiencing homelessness 

$3,327.00 Y 

Develop and deliver training for staff on teaching and learning through distance learning as well as hygiene and 
safety practices 

$1,182.50 N 

Provide training for staff to address trauma informed support. This service is primarily directed towards foster 
and homeless students.  

$6750.00 Y 

Purchase of additional technology and assessment tools for remote testing, counseling and sped services $5,600.00 N 

Pupil Learning Loss 

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019–2020 and 2020–21 school years, 
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language 
development, and mathematics.] 

Students in the high school program take only two classes at a time and have the option to extend their school year for an extra six weeks 
each year. These supports allow students who struggled during the 2019-20 school year to make up credits or extend classes in order to 
continue to progress towards graduation. 2020 graduates were also able to keep working on courses through August to complete their 
graduation requirements while still being considered a graduate of 2020.  

For the 2020-21 school year, each teacher will assess students in their current math and ELA classes to identify learning gaps from the 
previous course/school year. If students show a need for remediation, the students will either be placed in intervention courses or provided 
additional support time outside of the class to build skills and get on track. It is expected that all teachers will have to spend more time than 
usual reviewing content from the previous school year, especially in Language Arts and Math. Training will be provided to teachers to help 



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 10 

streamline lessons and assignments to focus on key skills and mastery. Reading intervention will be provided to students performing below 
grade level in ELA and for students who are designated English language learners. PVCS will conduct ongoing assessment and progress 
monitoring of language acquisition for English language learners to ensure they continue to make gains. Personalized learning plans will be 
developed at the start of the year to include appropriate placement in courses, appropriate curriculum within courses. Teaching strategies 
aligned to supporting English language learners are used by teachers in each class. 

 

Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed, 
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils 
experiencing homelessness.] 

K8 teachers will begin the year assessing students through STAR Enterprise to identify learning gaps in ELA and math. Once identified, 
teachers will review content in classes through direct instruction and use the supplementary program IXL to help students build deficient 
skills. High school teachers will assess students in ELA and math using the Smarter Balanced Interim Assessments and provide additional 
support in courses to help build skills. The Foster/Homeless liaison will work with teachers to identify learning gaps for these students and 
train teachers on how to best provide support. To support language learners, personalized learning plans will be developed at the start of the 
year to include appropriate placement in courses,  and the use of appropriate curriculum within courses. Teaching strategies will be aligned 
to supporting English language learners and used by teachers in each class. Students with exceptional needs will have a personalized 
learning plan developed for them and the general education and special education teachers will work in collaboration to ensure that students 
are successful in their plan. Students needing additional support will receive SAI sessions from the special education department. 
Coursework and assignments will be modified and streamlined in alignment with each student’s IEP accommodations and modifications.  

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 

[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.] 

Monitoring of the effectiveness of the services and supports to address learning loss will be measured through classroom observations, 
student performance on STAR Enterprise benchmark assessments and state tests. Progress will also be monitored through specific 
assignment analysis in PLCs and in conjunction with administration. In addition, the progress of homeless and foster youth will be monitored 
by the Homeless/Foster Youth Liaison. Students with exceptional needs will have progress monitored by their assigned Education Specialist 
and the Director of Student Services will monitor progress of English Language Learners.  

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Training for teachers in identifying learning gaps and addressing gaps through remediation and reteaching.  $1,510.00 N 



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 11 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Purchase of additional curriculum to help teachers reteach concepts from the previous grade level. This action 
supports the needs of ELLs and low income students most at risk of learning loss.  

$2,600.00 Y 

Training of staff to meet additional needs of homeless and foster youth and provide trauma informed care. This 
action is specifically targeted at meeting the needs of homeless and foster youth.  

$3,000.00 Y 

Purchase of additional curriculum to bolster learning acquisition in reading intervention courses for English 
Language Learners. This action is specifically targeted at English language learners.  

$1,000.00 Y 

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school 
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of 
COVID-19 on the school community.] 

During the school closure in 2019-20, PVCS’ Director of Student Services provided training to teachers on identifying mental health needs of 
students during distance learning lessons and interactions. Teachers are trained to reach out to the Director of Student Services when they 
are concerned about the social and emotional well-being of their students. The school partners with Palomar Family Counseling and other 
local agencies to provide counseling referrals for students and families if the issues cannot be resolved through school support. In addition, 
during the 20-21 school year, the school psychologist will take on additional students outside of special education to provide counseling 
services for students who are most in need.  PVCS created a bank of resources and professional developments to address positive mental 
health and wellness needs of both staff and students. The school receives information from the county office of education and other 
community groups on free virtual social and emotional supports for youth and shares with the school community. Teacher lesson plans will 
be designed to allow for the building of relationships in the virtual classroom. As the year progresses, the school anticipates that more 
training will be needed to support staff as they support students to navigate through the unprecedented and challenging circumstances 
created by the pandemic and economic outfall.  

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from 
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English, 
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not is not engaging in instruction and is 
at risk of learning loss.] 

The personalized learning model at PVCS requires that teachers hold weekly meetings with both students and parents. These meetings are  
time for the family and teacher to address concerns related to attendance, work completion and assignments as well as to provide targeted 
instruction and support. Students who are not attending are identified by the teacher who will create a Student Support Plan with the family to 
reengage the student in learning. If need warrants, a Student Support Team (SST) meeting will be held with family, teacher and an 



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 12 

administrator to assist students in overcoming their barriers to completing assignments and attending assigned learning sessions. Families 
who need translation services for these meetings will be provided with one from PVCS staff or a contracted service provider.  

School Nutrition 
[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.] 

PVCS provides one meal per day for students and family members who request. Families can access a grab and go meal each day during 
school business hours. 

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows 
and actions may be added as necessary] 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services  
Increased Apportionment Based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students  

10% $102,000.00  

Required Descriptions 

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of (1) 
how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the needs of these students.] 

The actions that are provided to the entire school but are primarily targeted to unduplicated student counts include:  

Section Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Purchase school meals Purchase of school meals for students and family members who 
require food resources during the school day. This action is 
specifically targeted at low income students and families.  

$ 50,000.00 Y 



California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 13 

• Train teachers in identifying students who need additional support through tutoring. This action is primarily targeted to English Language 
Learners, foster and homeless youth who were considered to need extra support due to language barriers, unstable housing or home 
environment. They will be serviced through additional tutoring time. 

• Purchase Intervention Materials to support learning loss. Students who are who are most at risk for learning loss such as homeless and 
foster youth were considered first in this action due to unstable distance learning environment. Additional materials for teachers to use in 
providing additional instruction for these students will benefit their ability to continue to learn while confronting learning gaps.  

• The purchase of wifi-embedded Chromebooks and additional Chromebooks, while available to any student who needs them, was primarily 
directed to low income and homeless youth. Low income students may need support with wifi service due to not having wifi in the home or 
being able to consistently pay the internet bill, while homeless students need a way to access the internet to meet the requirements of 
distance learning regardless of their housing situation.  

• The school psychologist’s ability to take on additional students for counseling, while offered to anyone in need or crisis, was primarily 
targeted at low income, foster and/or homeless students who may be experiencing increased trauma from the economic outfall of the 
pandemic. The same is true when considering the need for additional training for staff to assist with trauma informed care and teaching.  

 

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required.] 

The following services were targeted exclusively for unduplicated students, ensuring that their services are increased and/or improved by the 
percentage required based on the needs of these student groups: The estimated cost of each targeted service is listed below demonstrating 
how the services are being increased in amount above the 10% required.   

• Additional instructional aides will be used to provide targeted language support for English language learners beyond the supports they 
receive in the classrooms.  When considering the needs of Els, it was determined that additional instructional aide support would be required 
to provide targeted tutoring in English language instruction, beyond what was being taught in the classroom by the classroom teachers. This 
action supports the needs of Els by providing them with a targeted service and service time. ($67,571.75) 

• Staff will be trained specifically in how to support the social/emotion needs of foster/homeless youth during distance learning and 
provided with resources to intervene when students are in crisis. ($3,000.00) 

• Curriculum will be purchased to support English language development for Els in both intervention and grade level curriculum. 
($1,000.00) 

• Food will be purchased to be provided to any low income families meeting the reduced/free lunch requirements who request. 
($50,000.00) 



 

 

 
     9.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

TELEWORK POLICY 
 

Purpose 

 

Due to the ongoing Coronavirus outbreak, The School considers teleworking to be a viable 

alternative work arrangement in cases where the employee, the position, and the supervisor 

characteristics are best-suited to such an arrangement and there is minimal school and employee 

performance impact.  This Telework Policy will be used to guide the School’s determinations with 

respect to telework assignments. 

 

Definition 

 

Teleworking allows employees to work at home, on the road or in an appropriate remote location 

in California for all or part of their regular workweek. Teleworking is a voluntary work alternative 

that may be appropriate for some employees and some positions.  All informal teleworking 

assignments are made on a case-by-case basis.  Teleworking is not an entitlement, it is not a school-

wide benefit, and it in no way changes the terms and conditions of employment with the School. 

This policy creates no employee rights in relation to telework. The School has the right to refuse 

to make telework available to an employee and to terminate a telework assignment without cause 

at any time in its sole and unreviewable discretion.   

 

General Requirements  

 

Employees shall not telework unless they receive approval from their supervisor in writing.  

Employees shall make arrangements with their supervisor and co-workers for on-site job demands 

that arise on telework days, and shall be responsible for following all school policies and 

procedures when teleworking.   

 

Eligibility Considerations 

 

Consideration will be given to employees who have demonstrated work habits and performance 

well-suited to successful telework. in cases when doing so provides opportunities for improved 

employee performance or employee retention, reduced commuting miles, or savings. The 

following guidelines should be considered:  

 

● The employee has a position where communication can be accommodated electronically. 

● The employee’s telework assignment will not be detrimental to the productivity or work 

quality of other employees or effective operation of the School. 

● The employee must be able to perform work from home without unnecessary risk to the 

security of data, networks, or confidentiality. 

● The employee’s equipment and software must meet the School’s standards. The 

employee’s needs for Information Technology (“IT”) support must be minimal.  

● Telework sites must be in California.  

● The employee must be effective at working independently for extended periods. 

● The employee demonstrates good time-management skills by completing tasks on time. 



 

 

● The employee must maintain connections with the work group or team from a remote 

location. 

● The employee has no recent or pending corrective or disciplinary actions. 

 

Supervisor Responsibilities 

 

● Be familiar with the telework policy/guidelines. 

● Take the downside of telework into consideration prior to approval (i.e. detrimental to 

team and the School culture, lack of accessibility, etc.). 

● Be comfortable with remote supervision. 

● Learn the technology and tools necessary for remote supervision. 

● Establish communication protocols with telework employees. 

● Include employees in office/department events to preserve teamwork. 

● Review each employee periodically to ensure compliance with telework requirements, 

and address any work-related problems, including completing evaluations and 

disciplining as appropriate. 

● Maintain records related to telework and assist with surveys, program evaluations, and 

reports. 

 

Work Schedule and Accessibility 

 

● The School will determine the number of days of telecommuting allowed each week and 

the work schedule.  The employee agrees to be accessible by phone and email during their 

work schedule.    

● Telecommuting employees who are not exempt from overtime requirements of applicable 

laws will be required to record all hours worked as assigned by the School, and will be 

required to document that they took applicable meal/rest periods.   The employee must get 

advance written approval from a supervisor for working overtime. 

● The telework schedule needs to allow adequate time at the work site for meetings, access 

to facilities and supplies, and communication with other employees. Telework must not 

adversely affect students, employee productivity, or the progress of an individual or team 

assignment. 

 

Communication and Accessibility 

 

● Employees and supervisors are expected to determine how communication between the 

teleworking employee and the worksite will be handled.  

● Employees shall keep co-workers and support staff informed so they know how and when 

to reach them on telework days. 

● Employees must be reachable, within reason, during agreed upon work hours. 

● Employees must notify their supervisors if they leave their telework site during agreed 

upon hours. 

● Employees must post their telework schedule on their calendar. 

● Employees are expected to be flexible in their scheduling, and shall be available to attend 

staff meetings and other meetings onsite or virtually as required by their supervisor, even 

if meetings occur on a telework day. 



 

 

 

Telework Site 

 

The telework space is considered an extension of the School’s office space.  Employees will have 

the same responsibility for safe practices, accident prevention, and accident reporting as in the 

regular worksite.  The employee is responsible for establishing and maintaining a designated, 

adequate workspace at the alternate worksite. When the alternate site is the employee’s home, the 

employee is responsible to maintain a designated workplace in a safe (free from hazards and other 

dangers to the employee or equipment), clean, professional, and free of distractions.   

 

The employee will be responsible for all costs associated with remodeling, electrical 

modifications, or other permanent improvements to the home office workspace. Any school 

materials taken home must be kept in the designated work area at home and not be made accessible 

to others. The school will only reimburse the employee for home internet use if the employee is 

required to work from home due to unforeseen circumstances. In this case, the employee will be 

reimbursed  based on the Internet Use Reimbursement Scale.  

 

In case of injury, accident, theft, loss, or tort liability related to telework, the employee must 

immediately report the event to his or her supervisor and allow the School to investigate and/or 

inspect the telework site. 

 

Supplies, Equipment, and Furniture  

 

The School will determine, with information supplied by the employee and the supervisor, the 

appropriate equipment needs (including hardware, software, modems, phone and data lines, 

facsimile equipment or software, and photocopiers) for each telecommuting assignment on a case-

by-case basis. Equipment supplied by the School will be maintained by the School. The School 

will not provide office furniture, or other equipment with the exception of a laptop, for the 

workspace at home.  Equipment supplied by the employee, if deemed appropriate by the School, 

will be maintained by the employee.  The School accepts no responsibility for damage or repairs 

to employee-owned equipment.  Equipment supplied by the School is to be used for business 

purposes only. The employee must sign an inventory of all office property and agrees to take 

appropriate action to protect the items from damage or theft. Upon termination of employment, all 

school property will be returned to the School. 

 

Information and Security 

 

The employee must never provide any third parties access to the School network or share network 

access passwords and will follow all policies and procedures related to information security and 

network access. 

 

Consistent with the School’s expectations of information security for employees working at the 

office, telecommuting employees must ensure the protection of staff, parent, and student 

information accessible from their telework location. Steps include use of locked file cabinets and 

desks, regular password maintenance, shielding computer monitors, and any other steps 

appropriate for the job and the environment. 



 

 

 

Performance Standards 

 

The employee must maintain the same or an improved level of productivity and work quality while 

teleworking.  If productivity and/or work quality begin to decline, the telework assignment will be 

reevaluated to determine if changes can be made or it will be terminated. Telework allows a high 

amount of flexibility for an employee to complete their work in a timely and proper manner, and 

it is expected that the employee will not abuse this opportunity by allowing their productivity or 

work quality to decline. 

 

Employees must also maintain appropriate levels of professionalism when interacting remotely 

with families and other School stakeholders, and professional boundaries consistent with School 

policy when interacting remotely with students.   

 

Conditions of Employment 

 

Teleworking assignments do not change the conditions of employment or required compliance 

with policies and rules.  Policies, rules and practices shall apply at the telework site, including but 

not limited to those governing communicating internally and with the public, employee rights and 

responsibilities, facilities and equipment management, financial management, information 

management, and safety. A telework assignment does not constitute a promise of employment for 

a specified time or otherwise alter the at-will nature of employment with the School.  

 

Evaluation and Duration 

 

Evaluation of employee performance during the teleworking assignment shall include daily 

interaction by phone and email between the employee and the supervisor, and weekly face-to-face 

meetings whenever possible to discuss work progress and problems.  

 

Telework assignment may be modified and/or terminated at any time, for any reason, by the 

School.  Although not required, the School shall endeavor to provide seven (7) days’ notice of the 

modification and/or termination of the telework assignment whenever possible. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
     10.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Pacific View Charter School 
 

Curriculum and Instruction     Policy #3 
 
GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 
The aspiration of the charter school, in partnership with the community, is to provide an 
exceptional education that prepares students to be successful members of our 
democratic society. Therefore, the graduation requirements stated below have been 
established. The graduation requirements encompass the knowledge, abilities, and 
experience necessary to develop the essential aptitudes and skills of successful 
participants in today’s society; behavior of character, communication, citizenship, 
intellect, self-direction, teamwork, well-being and productivity. 
 
Students are to be provided with assistance to tailor the requirements according to their 
individual needs and abilities. 
 
Students planning to graduate in the current year but still owing credits at the last day 
of school may walk and be considered a graduate as long as the credits are completed 
prior to the beginning of Track 2. 
 
Subjects and Credits Required for Graduation 
English       40 Credits 
Math        30 Credits 
Social Science      30 Credits 
Science plus a lab      30 Credits 
Foreign Language 
or Visual/Performing Arts     10 Credits 
Health       5 Credits 
Physical Education      20 Credits 
Electives       45 Credits 
Career/Technology      10 Credits 
 
In addition, PVCS will issue a high school diploma using the state minimum graduation 
requirements to eligible students. Upon enrollment, Pacific View will conduct a credit 
analysis for 11th and 12th grade students to determine eligibility for modified graduation 
requirements. 
 
 
Adopted: 11-02-04      Amended: 12-06-05 6-27-16 

       01-16-07 2-21-17 
 


